

(A) - cont.
2

1 the department estimates will result in expenditure of more than \$150,000 to
2 determine whether the expenditures to be made under the contract will be efficient
3 and cost-effective. The secretary shall file a report with the cochairpersons of the
4 joint committee on finance no later than March 1 of each odd-numbered year
5 concerning its determinations issued during the biennium ending on the preceding
6 December 31.”.

7 **SECTION 20t.** 16.71 (1) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act 16, is
8 amended to read:

9 16.71 (1) Except as otherwise required under this section and s. 16.78 or as
10 authorized in s. 16.74, the department shall purchase and may delegate to special
11 designated agents the authority to purchase all necessary materials, supplies,
12 equipment, all other permanent personal property and miscellaneous capital, and
13 contractual services and all other expense of a consumable nature for all agencies.
14 In making any delegation, the department shall require the agent to adhere to all
15 requirements imposed upon the department in making purchases under this
16 subchapter. No delegation has the effect of exempting any proposed contract for
17 contractual services from review under s. 16.705. All materials, services and other
18 things and expense furnished to any agency and interest paid under s. 16.528 shall
19 be charged to the proper appropriation of the agency to which furnished.”.

20 **40.** Page 11, line 15: after that line insert:

21 “**SECTION 24t.** 19.42 (13) (k) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 19.42 (13) (k) The executive director, ~~executive assistant to the executive~~
23 ~~director~~, internal auditor, chief investment officer, chief financial officer, chief legal
24 counsel, chief risk officer and investment directors of the investment board.”.

1 **41.** Page 11, line 18: after that line insert:

2 “**SECTION 25cb.** 19.45 (13) of the statutes is created to read:

3 19.45 (13) No state public official holding an elective office may, directly or by
4 means of an agent, give, or offer or promise to give, or withhold, or offer or promise
5 to withhold, his or her vote or influence, or promise to take or refrain from taking
6 official action with respect to any proposed or pending matter in consideration of, or
7 upon condition that, any other person make or refrain from making a political
8 contribution, or provide or refrain from providing any service or other thing of value,
9 to or for the benefit of a candidate, a political party, any other person who is subject
10 to a registration requirement under s. 11.05, or any person making a communication
11 that contains a reference to a clearly identified state public official holding an
12 elective office or to a candidate for state public office.

13 **SECTION 25cd.** 19.49 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

14 19.49 (1m) No complaint alleging a violation of s. 19.45 (13) may be filed during
15 the period beginning 120 days before a general or spring election, or during the
16 period commencing on the date of the order of a special election under s. 8.50, and
17 ending on the date of that election, against a candidate who files a declaration of
18 candidacy to have his or her name appear on the ballot at that election.

19 **SECTION 25cf.** 19.49 (5) of the statutes is renumbered 19.49 (5) (a) and amended
20 to read:

21 19.49 (5) (a) No Except as provided in par. (b), no action may be taken on any
22 complaint ~~which~~ that is filed later than 3 years after a violation of this subchapter
23 or subch. III of ch. 13 is alleged to have occurred.

24 **SECTION 25ch.** 19.49 (5) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

1 19.49 (5) (b) The period of limitation under par. (a) is tolled for a complaint
2 alleging a violation of s. 19.45 (13) or 19.59 (1) (br) for the period during which such
3 a complaint may not be filed under s. 19.49 (1m) or 19.59 (8) (cm).

4 **SECTION 25cj.** 19.53 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 19.53 (6) An order requiring the accused to forfeit not more than \$500 for each
6 violation of s. 19.43, 19.44, or 19.56 (2) or not more than \$5,000 for each violation of
7 any other provision of this subchapter, or not more than the applicable amount
8 specified in s. 13.69 for each violation of subch. III of ch. 13; ~~and, if,~~ If the board
9 determines that the accused has realized economic gain as a result of the violation,
10 an the board may, in addition, order requiring the accused to forfeit the amount
11 gained as a result of the violation. In addition, if the board determines that a state
12 public official has violated s. 19.45 (13), the board may order the official to forfeit an
13 amount equal to the amount or value of any political contribution, service, or other
14 thing of value that was wrongfully obtained. If the board determines that a state
15 public official has violated s. 19.45 (13) and no political contribution, service or other
16 thing of value was obtained, the board may order the official to forfeit an amount
17 equal to the maximum contribution authorized under s. 11.26 (1) for the office held
18 or sought by the official, whichever amount is greater. The attorney general, when
19 so requested by the board, shall institute proceedings to recover any forfeiture
20 incurred under this section or s. 19.545 which is not paid by the person against whom
21 it is assessed.

22 **SECTION 25cL.** 19.535 of the statutes is created to read:

23 **19.535 Direct enforcement.** If the board refuses or otherwise fails to
24 authorize an investigation under s. 19.49 (3) with respect to a violation of s. 19.45 (13)
25 within 30 days after receiving a verified complaint alleging a violation of s. 19.45 (13),

1 the person making the complaint may bring an action to recover the forfeiture under
2 s. 19.53 (6) on his or her relation in the name, and on behalf, of the state. In such
3 actions, the court may award actual and necessary costs of prosecution, including
4 reasonable attorney fees, to the relator if he or she prevails, but any forfeiture
5 recovered shall be paid to the state. If the court finds in any such action that the
6 cause of action was frivolous as provided in s. 814.025, the court shall award costs
7 and fees to the defendant under that section.

8 **SECTION 25cn.** 19.59 (1) (br) of the statutes is created to read:

9 19.59 (1) (br) No local public official holding an elective office may, directly or
10 by means of an agent, give, or offer or promise to give, or withhold, or offer or promise
11 to withhold, his or her vote or influence, or promise to take or refrain from taking
12 official action with respect to any proposed or pending matter in consideration of, or
13 upon condition that, any other person make or refrain from making a political
14 contribution, or provide or refrain from providing any service or other thing of value,
15 to or for the benefit of a candidate, a political party, any other person who is subject
16 to a registration requirement under s. 11.05, or any person making a communication
17 that contains a reference to a clearly identified local public official holding an elective
18 office or to a candidate for local public office.

19 **SECTION 25cp.** 19.59 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 19.59 (7) (a) and
20 amended to read:

21 19.59 (7) (a) Any person who violates sub. (1) may be required to forfeit not
22 more than \$1,000 for each violation, and, if the court determines that the accused has
23 violated sub. (1) (br), the court may, in addition, order the accused to forfeit an
24 amount equal to the amount or value of any political contribution, service, or other
25 thing of value that was wrongfully obtained.

1 **SECTION 25cr.** 19.59 (7) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

2 19.59 (7) (b) Any person who violates sub. (1) may be required to forfeit not
3 more than \$1,000 for each violation, and, if the court determines that a local public
4 official has violated sub. (1) (br) and no political contribution, service or other thing
5 of value was obtained, the court may, in addition, order the accused to forfeit an
6 amount equal to the maximum contribution authorized under s. 11.26 (1) for the
7 office held or sought by the official, whichever amount is greater.

8 **SECTION 25ct.** 19.59 (8) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 19.59 (8) (c) If the district attorney fails to commence an action to enforce sub.
10 (1) (a), (b), or (c) to (g) within 20 days after receiving a verified complaint or if the
11 district attorney refuses to commence such an action, the person making the
12 complaint may petition the attorney general to act upon the complaint. The attorney
13 general may then bring an action under par. (a) or (b), or both.

14 **SECTION 25cv.** 19.59 (8) (cm) and (cn) of the statutes are created to read:

15 19.59 (8) (cm) No complaint alleging a violation of sub. (1) (br) may be filed
16 during the period beginning 120 days before a general or spring election, or during
17 the period commencing on the date of the order of a special election under s. 8.50, and
18 ending on the date of that election, against a candidate who files a declaration of
19 candidacy to have his or her name appear on the ballot at that election.

20 (cn) If the district attorney refuses or otherwise fails to commence an action to
21 enforce sub. (1) (br) within 30 days after receiving a verified complaint alleging a
22 violation of sub. (1) (br), the person making the complaint may bring an action to
23 recover the forfeiture under sub. (7) on his or her relation in the name, and on behalf,
24 of the state. In such actions, the court may award actual and necessary costs of
25 prosecution, including reasonable attorney fees, to the relator if her or she prevails,

1 but any forfeiture recovered shall be paid to the state. If the court finds in any such
2 action that the cause of action was frivolous as provided in s. 814.025, the court shall
3 award costs and fees to the defendant under that section.”.

4 **42.** Page 11, line 21: after that line insert:

5 **“20.255 Public instruction, department of**

6 (2) AIDS FOR LOCAL EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMING

7 (fu) Milwaukee parental choice pro-
8 gram

GPR A -0- 25,350,000

9 ”.

10 **43.** Page 11, line 21: after that line insert:

11 **“20.255 Public instruction, department of**

12 (2) AIDS FOR LOCAL EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMING

13 (ec) Enhanced capacity and quality
14 aid

GPR A -0- 8,000,000”.

15 **44.** Page 11, line 21: after that line insert:

16 **“20.215 Arts board**

17 (1) SUPPORT OF ARTS PROJECTS

18 (cm) Milwaukee Art Museum

GPR A -0- 50,000”.

19 **45.** Page 11, line 22: before that line insert:

Fix Component

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

"20.143 Commerce, department of

(1) ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

(bp) Forward Wisconsin, Inc.; study

for brand image GPR A -0- 50,000".

lines 1 and 2.
46. Page ~~11~~¹², line ~~22~~¹: delete the material beginning with that line and ending

with page 12, line 2.

47. Page 11, line 24: after that line insert:

"(eq) Soil and water resource manage-

ment GPR A -0- 205,300

(rm) Soil and water resource manage-

ment; environmental fund SEG A -0- 836,700".

48. Page 12, line 3: after that line insert:

"(4) WATER

(cg) Conservation reserve enhance-

ment program PR A -0- 40,800".

49. Page 12, line 4: after that line insert:

"(as) Environmental aids - soil and

water resource management

grants SEG A -0- 3,725,100".

50. Page 12, line 6: before that line insert:

move

1 **"20.410 Corrections, department of**

2 (1) ADULT CORRECTIONAL SERVICES

3 (gv) Inmate visitor transportation PR A -0- 60,000".

4 **51.** Page 12, line 6: delete lines 6 to 14.

5 **52.** Page 12, line 10: after that line insert:

6 **"20.455 Justice, department of**

7 (2) LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

8 (cr) Automated fingerprint identifi-
9 cation system grant GPR A -0- 63,200".

10 **53.** Page 12, line 10: after that line insert:

11 **"20.455 Justice, department of**

12 (1) LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

13 (g) Consumer protection, informa-
14 tion, and education PR A 175,000 175,000".

15 **54.** Page 12, line 15: after that line insert:

16 "(1) SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT; LAND INFORMATION

17 BOARD

18 (is) Information technology and tele-
19 communications services; non-
20 state entities PR A -0- 12,666,600

21 (it) Electric communications ser-
22 vices; nonstate entities PR A -0- -0-

1	(kg) Electronic communications ser-				
2	vices; state agencies	PR-S	A	-0-	-0-
3	(kL) Printing, mail processing, and				
4	information technology process-				
5	ing services to agencies	PR-S	A	-0-	72,235,000
6	(kr) Information technology develop-				
7	ment and management services	PR-S	A	-0-	-0-".

8 **55.** Page 12, line 17: after that line insert:

9	"(kt) Wisconsin tribal-state council	PR-S	A	-0-	214,300".
---	--------------------------------------	------	---	-----	-----------

10 **56.** Page 12, line 20: after that line insert:

11 **"20.566 Revenue, department of**

12 (1) COLLECTION OF TAXES

13	(gc) Administration of cigarette				
14	direct marketing permits	PR	A	-0-	126,600".

15 **57.** Page 12, line 20: after that line insert:

16 **"20.515 Employee trust funds, department of**

17 (1) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

18	(vm) Early retirement benefits under				
19	2001 Wisconsin Act (this act)	SEG	B	1,075,000	1,075,000".

20 **58.** Page 13, line 10: after that line insert:

21 **"SECTION 27hc.** 20.115 (2) (j) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 20.115 (2) (j) *Dog licenses, rabies control, and related services.* The amounts
23 in the schedule to provide dog license tags and forms under s. 174.07 (2), to perform

1 other program responsibilities under ch. 174, to administer the rabies control
2 program under s. 95.21, to help administer the rabies control media campaign, and
3 to carry out humane activities under s. 93.07 (11) and ch. 173. All moneys received
4 under ss. 95.21 (9) (c), 173.27, and 174.09 (1) and (3) shall be credited to this
5 appropriation.

6 **SECTION 27hd.** 20.115 (2) (j) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Acts
7 16 and (this act), is repealed and recreated to read:

8 20.115 (2) (j) *Dog licenses, rabies control, and related services.* All moneys
9 received under ss. 95.21 (9) (c), 173.27, 173.40, and 174.09 (1) and (3), to provide dog
10 license tags and forms under s. 174.07 (2), to perform other program responsibilities
11 under ch. 174, to administer the rabies control program under s. 95.21, to help
12 administer the rabies control media campaign, and to carry out activities under s.
13 93.07 (11) and ch. 173.”.

14 **59.** Page 13, line 10: after that line insert:

15 “**SECTION 27c.** 20.115 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
16 16, is repealed.

17 **SECTION 27e.** 20.115 (1) (k) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
18 16, is repealed.”.

19 **60.** Page 13, line 10: after that line insert:

20 “**SECTION 27m.** 20.115 (1) (hm) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 20.115 (1) (hm) *Ozone-depleting refrigerants and products regulation.* The
22 amounts in the schedule for administration of the mobile air conditioner servicing
23 and refrigerant recycling programs and for responsibilities under ~~ss. s.~~ 100.45 and
24 100.50 relating to sales and labeling of products containing or made with

1 ozone-depleting substances. All moneys received from fees under s. 100.45 (5) (a)
2 3. and (5m) shall be credited to this appropriation.”.

3 **61.** Page 13, line 11: after that line insert:

4 “SECTION 28j. 20.115 (7) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 20.370 (7) (bb).

5 SECTION 28jg. 20.115 (7) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 20.370 (6) (ac).

6 SECTION 28km. 20.115 (7) (d) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
7 16, is renumbered 20.370 (6) (dd).

8 SECTION 28ks. 20.115 (7) (f) of the statutes is renumbered 20.370 (7) (df).

9 SECTION 28ku. 20.115 (7) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 20.115 (7) (g) *Agricultural impact statements.* All moneys received by the
11 department under s. 32.035 from the preparation of agricultural impact statements,
12 except moneys appropriated under s. 20.370 (4) (cg), for general program operations.

13 SECTION 28L. 20.115 (7) (qd) of the statutes is repealed.”.

14 **62.** Page 13, line 11: after that line insert:

15 “SECTION 28n. 20.143 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.143 (1) (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for
17 general program operations under subchs. I and III to VIII of ch. 560, excluding
18 general program operations of the division of international and export services.”.

19 **63.** Page 13, line 11: after that line insert:

20 “SECTION 28m. 20.115 (8) (jm) of the statutes is repealed.”.

21 **64.** Page 13, line 11: after that line insert:

22 “SECTION 28fw. 20.143 (1) (bp) of the statutes is created to read:

1 20.143 (1) (bp) *Forward Wisconsin, Inc.; study for brand image*. The amounts
2 in the schedule to contract for the study and proposal for a national brand image
3 specified in 2001 Wisconsin Act ... (this act), section 9110 (1c).

4 **SECTION 28fx.** 20.143 (1) (bp) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
5 (this act), is repealed.”.

6 **65.** Page 13, line 11: delete that line.

7 **66.** Page 13, line 12: after that line insert:

8 “**SECTION 29n.** 20.143 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.143 (1) (g) *Gifts, grants, and proceeds*. All moneys received from gifts,
10 donations, grants, bequests, and devises and all proceeds from services, conferences,
11 and sales of publications and promotional materials, including the fees collected
12 under s. 560.165 (1), to carry out the purposes for which made or collected, including
13 providing funding for the operations of the division of international and export
14 services.”.

15 **67.** Page 13, line 13: after that line insert:

16 “**SECTION 30e.** 20.225 (1) (kb) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
17 16, is amended to read:

18 20.225 (1) (kb) *Emergency weather warning system operation*. From the
19 moneys received by the department of ~~electronic government~~ administration for the
20 provision of state telecommunications to state agencies, the amounts in the schedule
21 for the operation of the emergency weather warning system under s. 39.11 (21).”.

22 **68.** Page 13, line 13: after that line insert:

23 “**SECTION 30hL.** 20.235 (1) (fe) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.235 (1) (fe) *Wisconsin higher education grants; University of Wisconsin*
2 *System students. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule A sum sufficient equal to*
3 *the amount determined under s. 39.435 (7) for the Wisconsin higher education grant*
4 *program under s. 39.435 for University of Wisconsin System students, except for*
5 grants awarded under s. 39.435 (2) or (5). " ←

6 ~~SECTION 30hm. 20.285 (4) (dd) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

7 ~~20.285 (4) (dd) *Lawton minority undergraduate grants program. The amounts*~~
8 ~~*in the schedule A sum sufficient equal to the amount determined under s. 36.34 (1)*~~
9 ~~*(c) for the Lawton minority undergraduate grant program under s. 36.34 (1).*~~

10 **69.** Page 13, line 13: after that line insert:

11 "SECTION 30d. 20.215 (1) (cm) of the statutes is created to read:

12 20.215 (1) (cm) *Milwaukee Art Museum. The amounts in the schedule for the*
13 *exhibitions under 2001 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9105 (1) (c). No moneys*
14 *may be encumbered or expended from this appropriation account after June 20,*
15 *2003.*".

16 **70.** Page 14, line 3: delete "\$4,200,945,900" and substitute "\$4,189,145,900".

17 **71.** Page 14, line 6: after that line insert:

18 "SECTION 32mm. 20.275 (intro.) of the statutes is repealed.

19 SECTION 32msm. 20.275 (1) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 20.255 (4)
20 (title).

21 SECTION 32mr. 20.275 (1) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

22 SECTION 32ms. 20.275 (1) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

23 SECTION 32mt. 20.275 (1) (er) of the statutes is renumbered 20.255 (4) (er) and
24 amended to read:

1 20.255 (4) (er) *Principal, interest and rebates; general purpose revenue —*
2 *public library boards.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment
3 of principal and interest costs incurred in financing educational technology
4 infrastructure financial assistance to public library boards under s. ~~44.72 (4)~~ 115.999
5 ~~(4)~~ and to make full payment of the amounts determined by the building commission
6 under s. 13.488 (1) (m), to the extent that these costs and payments are not paid
7 under par. (hb).

8 **SECTION 32mu.** 20.275 (1) (es) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
9 Act 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (es) and amended to read:

10 20.255 (4) (es) *Principal, interest and rebates; general purpose revenue —*
11 *schools.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal
12 and interest costs incurred in financing educational technology infrastructure
13 financial assistance to school districts and charter school sponsors under s. ~~44.72 (4)~~
14 115.999 (4) and to make full payment of the amounts determined by the building
15 commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m), to the extent that these costs and payments are
16 not paid under par. (h).

17 **SECTION 32mv.** 20.275 (1) (et) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
18 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (et) and amended to read:

19 20.255 (4) (et) *Educational technology training and technical assistance*
20 *grants.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for grants to secured correctional
21 facilities, as defined in s. ~~44.70 (3r)~~ 115.997 (3r), cooperative educational service
22 agencies and consortia under s. ~~44.72 (1)~~ 115.999 (1) and to the board of regents of
23 the University of Wisconsin System under 1999 Wisconsin Act 9, section 9148 (2g).

24 **SECTION 32mw.** 20.275 (1) (f) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
25 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (f) and amended to read:

1 20.255 (4) (f) *Educational technology block grants.* The amounts in the
2 schedule, less the amounts appropriated under pars. (im), (jm), (js), and (mp), to
3 make payments to school districts, secured correctional facilities, as defined in s.
4 ~~44.70 (3r)~~ 115.997 (3r), and charter school sponsors under s. ~~44.72 (2) (b) 2.~~ 115.999
5 (2) (b) 2.

6 **SECTION 32mwm.** 20.275 (1) (g) of the statutes is renumbered 20.255 (4) (g).

7 **SECTION 32mx.** 20.275 (1) (h) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
8 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (h) and amended to read:

9 20.255 (4) (h) *Principal, interest and rebates; program revenue — schools.* All
10 moneys received under s. ~~44.72 (4) (e)~~ 115.999 (4) (c) to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for
11 the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing educational
12 technology infrastructure financial assistance to school districts and charter school
13 sponsors under s. ~~44.72 (4)~~ 115.999 (4) and to make full payment of the amounts
14 determined by the building commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m).

15 **SECTION 32n.** 20.275 (1) (hb) of the statutes is renumbered 20.255 (4) (hb) and
16 amended to read:

17 20.255 (4) (hb) *Principal, interest and rebates; program revenue — public*
18 *library boards.* All moneys received under s. ~~44.72 (4) (e)~~ 115.999 (4) (c) to reimburse
19 s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing
20 educational technology infrastructure financial assistance to public library boards
21 under s. ~~44.72 (4)~~ 115.999 (4) and to make full payment of the amounts determined
22 by the building commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m).

23 **SECTION 32nd.** 20.275 (1) (i) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
24 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (i).

1 **SECTION 32nm.** 20.275 (1) (im) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
2 Act 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (im) and amended to read:

3 20.255 (4) (im) *Educational technology block grants; supplemental.* Except as
4 provided in par. (i), all moneys received from the Ameritech Wisconsin settlement,
5 public service commission docket 6720–TI–164, for payments to school districts
6 under s. ~~44.72 (2) (b) 2.~~ 115.999 (2) (b) 2.

7 **SECTION 32np.** 20.275 (1) (jm) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
8 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (jm) and amended to read:

9 20.255 (4) (jm) *Educational technology block grants; Wisconsin Advanced*
10 *Telecommunications Foundation funds.* All moneys received from the Wisconsin
11 Advanced Telecommunications Foundation, less the amounts credited to the
12 appropriation account under s. 20.865 (4) (gm), to make payments to school districts,
13 secured correctional facilities, as defined in s. ~~44.70 (3r)~~ 115.997 (3r), and charter
14 school sponsors under s. ~~44.72 (2) (b) 2.~~ 115.999 (2) (b) 2.

15 **SECTION 32ns.** 20.275 (1) (js) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
16 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (js) and amended to read:

17 20.255 (4) (js) *Educational technology block grants; Wisconsin Advanced*
18 *Telecommunications Foundation assessments.* All moneys received from
19 assessments paid under 2001 Wisconsin Act 16, section 9142 (3mk), to make
20 payments to school districts under s. ~~44.72 (2) (b) 2.~~ 115.999 (2) (b) 2.

21 **SECTION 32nt.** 20.275 (1) (k) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
22 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (k).

23 **SECTION 32nu.** 20.275 (1) (L) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
24 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (L) and amended to read:

1 20.255 (4) (L) *Equipment purchases and leases.* All moneys received from
2 school districts, cooperative educational service agencies and public educational
3 institutions for the purchase or lease of educational technology equipment under s.
4 ~~44.71 (2) (h)~~ 115.998 (8), for the purpose of purchasing such equipment.

5 **SECTION 32num.** 20.275 (1) (m) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
6 Act 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (m).

7 **SECTION 32nv.** 20.275 (1) (mp) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
8 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (mp) and amended to read:

9 20.255 (4) (mp) *Federal e-rate aid.* All federal moneys received under 47 USC
10 254 for payments to school districts under s. 44.72 (2) (b) ~~2~~. 115.999 (2) (b) 2.

11 **SECTION 32nw.** 20.275 (1) (q) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
12 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (q) and amended to read:

13 20.255 (4) (q) *Computer training.* From the universal service fund, the
14 amounts in the schedule for the grant to the Racine Unified School District under s.
15 ~~44.72 (3)~~ 115.999 (3).

16 **SECTION 32nx.** 20.275 (1) (s) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
17 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (s) and amended to read:

18 20.255 (4) (s) *Telecommunications access; school districts; grant.* Biennially,
19 from the universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule to make payments to
20 telecommunications providers under contracts with the department of
21 administration under s. ~~16.971 (1)~~ ^{strike} 16.971 (13) to the extent that the amounts due are not paid
22 from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530 (1)~~ ^{strike} 20.505 (1) (is); prior to January 1, 2006, to make
23 grants to school districts under s. ~~44.73 (6)~~ 115.9995 (6); and, in the 1999-2000 fiscal
24 year, to award a grant to the distance learning network under 1999 Wisconsin Act
25 9, section 9148 (4w).

1 **SECTION 32ny.** 20.275 (1) (t) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
2 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (t).

3 **SECTION 32nz.** 20.275 (1) (tm) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
4 Act 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (tm) and amended to read:

5 20.255 (4) (tm) *Telecommunications access; private schools.* Biennially, from
6 the universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule to make payments to
7 telecommunications providers under contracts with the department of
8 administration under s. ~~16.974 (3)~~ ^{16.971 (1s)} to the extent that the amounts due are not paid
9 from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530~~ ^{20.505} (1) (is) and, prior to January 1, 2006, to make
10 grants to private schools under s. 44.73 (6) 115.9995 (6). " ←

11 **SECTION 32nzm.** 20.275 (1) (tu) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
12 Act 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (tu).

13 **SECTION 32nzn.** 20.275 (1) (tw) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
14 Act 16, is renumbered 20.255 (4) (tw)."

15 **72.** Page 14, line 6: after that line insert:

16 "SECTION 32pd. 20.285 (1) (eq) of the statutes is created to read:

17 20.285 (1) (eq) *Soil and water resource management.* The amounts in the
18 schedule for University of Wisconsin-Extension activities related to soil and water
19 resource management.

20 **SECTION 32vd.** 20.285 (1) (rm) of the statutes is created to read:

21 20.285 (1) (rm) *Soil and water resource management; environmental fund.*
22 From the environmental fund, the amounts in the schedule for University of
23 Wisconsin-Extension activities related to soil and water resource management."

24 **73.** Page 14, line 6: after that line insert:

1 “SECTION 32m. 20.255 (2) (fu) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:
2 20.255 (2) (fu) *Milwaukee parental choice program*. The amounts in the
3 schedule for private schools under s. 119.23 (4) and (4m).”.

4 **74.** Page 14, line 6: after that line insert:

5 “SECTION 32m. 20.285 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
6 16, is amended to read:

7 20.285 (1) (c) *Energy costs*. The amounts in the schedule to pay for utilities and
8 for fuel, heat, and air conditioning, and to pay costs incurred under ss. 16.858 and
9 16.895, including all operating costs recommended by the department of
10 administration that result from the installation of pollution abatement equipment
11 in state-owned or operated heating, cooling, or power plants, by or on behalf of the
12 board of regents, and to pay costs allocated to the board of regents in a plan approved
13 by the public service commission under 2001 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9142
14 (1z) (b) 2.”.

15 **75.** Page 14, line 6: after that line insert:

16 “~~SECTION 32d. 20.275 (1) (s) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act~~
17 16, is amended to read:

18 20.275 (1) (s) *Telecommunications access; school districts; grant*. Biennially,
19 from the universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule to make payments to
20 telecommunications providers under contracts with the department of
21 administration under s. ~~16.974 (1)~~ 16.971 (13) to the extent that the amounts due are
22 not paid from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530~~ 20.505 (1) (is); prior to January 1,
23 2006, to make grants to school districts under s. 44.73 (6); and, in the 1999–2000

1 fiscal year, to award a grant to the distance learning network under 1999 Wisconsin
2 Act 9, section 9148 (4w).

FIX COMPONENT
←

3 **SECTION 32f.** 20.275 (1) (t) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
4 16, is amended to read: *renumbered 20.255 (4) (t) and*

5 ~~20.275 (1) (t)~~ *20.255 (4) (t)* *(B)* *Telecommunications access; private and technical colleges and*
6 *libraries.* Biennially, from the universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule
7 to make payments to telecommunications providers under contracts with the
8 department of administration under s. ~~16.974 (2)~~ *16.971 (14)* to the extent that the
9 amounts due are not paid from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530~~ *20.505* (1) (is).

10 **SECTION 32h.** 20.275 (1) (tm) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
11 16, is amended to read:

12 20.275 (1) (tm) *Telecommunications access; private schools.* Biennially, from
13 the universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule to make payments to
14 telecommunications providers under contracts with the department of
15 administration under s. ~~16.974 (3)~~ *16.971 (15)* to the extent that the amounts due are
16 not paid from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530~~ *20.505* (1) (is) and, prior to January
17 1, 2006, to make grants to private schools under s. 44.73 (6).

18 **SECTION 32j.** 20.275 (1) (tu) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
19 16, is amended to read: *renumbered 20.255 (4) (tu) and*

FIX COMPONENT
←

20 ~~20.275 (1) (tu)~~ *20.255 (4) (tu) (B)* *Telecommunications access; state schools.* Biennially, from the
21 universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule to make payments to
22 telecommunications providers under contracts with the department of
23 administration under s. ~~16.974 (4)~~ *16.971 (16)* to the extent that the amounts due are
24 not paid from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530~~ *20.505* (1) (kL).

Fix
Component

1 **SECTION 32L.** 20.275 (1) (tw) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
2 16, is amended to read:
3 ~~20.275 (1) (tw)~~ ^{renumbered 20.255 (4) (tw) and} ^(B) *Telecommunications access; secured correctional facilities.*
4 Biennially, from the universal service fund, the amounts in the schedule to make
5 payments to telecommunications providers under contracts with the department of
6 administration under s. ~~16.974 (1)~~ 16.971 (13) to the extent that the amounts due are
7 not paid from the appropriation under s. ~~20.530~~ 20.505 (1) (ke).”

8 **76.** Page 14, line 6: after that line insert:

9 “**SECTION 32m.** 20.255 (2) (ec) of the statutes is created to read:

10 20.255 (2) (ec) *Enhanced capacity and quality aid.* The amounts in the
11 schedule for aid under s. 119.85 to the school district operating under ch. 119.”

12 **77.** Page 14, line 7: delete lines 7 to 14.

Insert
121-12

13 **78.** Page 15, line 24: after that line insert:

14 “**SECTION 36ft.** 20.370 (4) (cg) of the statutes is created to read:

15 20.370 (4) (cg) *Conservation reserve enhancement program.* From the general
16 fund, from the moneys received under s. 32.035, the amounts in the schedule for
17 administering the conservation reserve enhancement program under s. 281.52.

18 **SECTION 36fx.** 20.370 (4) (mr) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 20.370 (4) (mr) *General program operations — nonpoint source and*
20 *conservation reserve enhancement.* From the environmental fund, the amounts in
21 the schedule for performing the duties of the department under ~~s.~~ ss. 92.14, 281.52,
22 and 281.65.

23 **SECTION 36jv.** 20.370 (6) (as) of the statutes is created to read:



State of Wisconsin
 2001 - 2002 LEGISLATURE
 January 2002 Special Session

LRBb2912/2
 MJL:jld:jf

SCC:.....Engel - CN7602, Tying tuition and financial aid (WHEG and Lawton, SB-79)

FOR 2001-03 BUDGET - NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

CAUCUS SENATE AMENDMENT,

TO ASSEMBLY SUBSTITUTE AMENDMENT 1,

TO ASSEMBLY BILL 1

INS. (13) 121-12

1 ~~At the locations indicated, amend the substitute amendment as follows:~~

2 1. Page ~~13~~¹⁴, line ~~13~~¹⁴: after that line insert:

3 ~~SECTION 30hL. 20.235 (1) (fe) of the statutes is amended to read:~~
 4 ~~20.235 (1) (fe) Wisconsin higher education grants; University of Wisconsin~~
 5 ~~System students. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule A sum sufficient equal to~~
 6 ~~the amount determined under s. 39.435 (7) for the Wisconsin higher education grant~~
 7 ~~program under s. 39.435 for University of Wisconsin System students, except for~~
 8 ~~grants awarded under s. 39.435 (2) or (5).~~

9 → SECTION 30hm. 20.285 (4) (dd) of the statutes is amended to read:

→ * b2912/2 * Δ ← put in burning dot number

1 20.285 (4) (dd) *Lawton minority undergraduate grants program*. ~~The amounts~~
2 ~~in the schedule~~ A sum sufficient equal to the amount determined under s. 36.34 (1)
3 (c) for the Lawton minority undergraduate grant program under s. 36.34 (1).”.

4 ~~2. Page 31, line 17. after that line insert:~~

5 ~~“SECTION 93f. 36.34 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:~~

6 ~~36.34 (1) (c) 1. In this paragraph:~~

7 ~~a. For purposes of determining the appropriation under s. 20.285 (4) (dd) for~~
8 ~~fiscal year 2003–04, “base amount” means the amount shown in the schedule under~~
9 ~~s. 20.005 for that appropriation for fiscal year 2002–03.~~

10 ~~b. For purposes of determining the appropriation under s. 20.285 (4) (dd) for~~
11 ~~each fiscal year after fiscal year 2003–04, “base amount” means the appropriation~~
12 ~~determined under subd. 2. for the previous fiscal year.~~

13 ~~2. Annually, by February 1, the board shall determine the appropriation under~~
14 ~~s. 20.285 (4) (dd) for the next fiscal year as follows:~~

15 ~~a. The board shall determine the percentage by which the undergraduate~~
16 ~~academic fees charged for the current academic year at each institution within the~~
17 ~~University of Wisconsin System has increased or decreased from the undergraduate~~
18 ~~academic fees charged for the previous academic year.~~

19 ~~b. The appropriation for the next fiscal year shall be the result obtained by~~
20 ~~increasing, to the nearest \$100, the base amount by the highest percentage increase~~
21 ~~determined under subd. 2. a., except that, if the undergraduate academic fees for the~~
22 ~~current academic year decreased or did not change from the undergraduate~~
23 ~~academic fees charged for the previous academic year at each institution specified~~
24 ~~in subd. 2. a., the appropriation shall be the base amount.”.~~

1 20.370 (6) (as) *Environmental aids – soil and water resource management*
2 *grants*. From the environmental fund, the amounts in the schedule for soil and water
3 resource management grants under s. 92.14.”.

4 **79.** Page 15, line 24: after that line insert:

5 “**SECTION 360gb.** 20.370 (5) (fq) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 20.370 (5) (fq) *Wildlife damage claims and abatement*. All moneys received
7 under ss. 29.181 (3), 29.559 (1r) (b), and 29.563 (13) and not appropriated under par.
8 (fr) and sub. (1) (Ls) to provide state aid for the wildlife damage abatement program
9 under s. 29.889 (5) (c) and the wildlife damage claim program under s. 29.889 (7) (d),
10 for county administration costs under s. 29.889 (2) (d), and for payments under s.
11 29.89, and for the testing of chronic wasting disease under s. 29.063.”.

12 **80.** Page 15, line 24: after that line insert:

13 “**SECTION 36fb.** 20.370 (4) (aq) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
14 Act 16, is amended to read:

15 20.370 (4) (aq) *Water resources management — ~~management activities~~ lake,*
16 *river, and invasive species management.* The amounts in the schedule for lake and
17 river management and other water resource management activities and for the
18 *invasive species program under s. 23.22.*”.

19 **81.** Page 16, line 5: after that line insert:

20 “**SECTION 36md.** 20.395 (3) (bq) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 20.395 (3) (bq) *Major highway development, state funds*. As a continuing
22 appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for major development of state trunk and
23 connecting highways and for the disadvantaged business demonstration and

1 training program under s. 84.076. This paragraph does not apply to major
2 development of any southeast Wisconsin freeway, as defined in s. 84.014 (1) (e).

3 **SECTION 36me.** 20.395 (3) (br) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.395 (3) (br) *Major highway development, service funds.* All moneys received
5 from the fund created under s. 18.57 (1) as reimbursement for the temporary
6 financing under sub. (9) (th) of projects for major development of state trunk and
7 connecting highways that are financed under s. 84.59 and enumerated under s.
8 84.013 (3), for the purpose of financing such projects. This paragraph does not apply
9 to any project for major development of a southeast Wisconsin freeway, as defined in
10 s. 84.014 (1) (e).

11 **SECTION 36mf.** 20.395 (3) (bv) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.395 (3) (bv) *Major highway development, local funds.* All moneys received
13 from any local unit of government or other source for major development of state
14 trunk and connecting highways, including the railroad and utility alteration and
15 relocation loan program under s. 84.065, and the disadvantaged business
16 demonstration and training program under s. 84.076, for such purposes. This
17 paragraph does not apply to major development of any southeast Wisconsin freeway,
18 as defined in s. 84.014 (1) (e).

19 **SECTION 36mg.** 20.395 (3) (bx) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 20.395 (3) (bx) *Major highway development, federal funds.* All moneys received
21 from the federal government for major development of state trunk and connecting
22 highways and the disadvantaged business demonstration and training program
23 under s. 84.076, for such purposes. This paragraph does not apply to major
24 development of any southeast Wisconsin freeway, as defined in s. 84.014 (1) (e).

1 **SECTION 36mh.** 20.395 (3) (cq) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
2 Act 16, is amended to read:

3 20.395 (3) (cq) *State highway rehabilitation, state funds.* As a continuing
4 appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for improvement of existing state trunk
5 and connecting highways; for improvement of bridges on state trunk or connecting
6 highways and other bridges for which improvement is a state responsibility, for
7 necessary approach work for such bridges and for replacement of such bridges with
8 at-grade crossing improvements; for the construction and rehabilitation of the
9 national system of interstate and defense highways and bridges and related
10 appurtenances; for special maintenance activities under s. 84.04 on roadside
11 improvements; for bridges under s. 84.10; for payment to a local unit of government
12 for a jurisdictional transfer under s. 84.02 (8); for the disadvantaged business
13 demonstration and training program under s. 84.076; for the transfers required
14 under 1999 Wisconsin Act 9, section 9250 (1); and for the purposes described under
15 1999 Wisconsin Act 9, section 9150 (8g), and 2001 Wisconsin Act 16, section 9152 (4e).
16 This paragraph does not apply to any southeast Wisconsin freeway rehabilitation
17 projects under s. 84.014, or to the installation, replacement, rehabilitation, or
18 maintenance of highway signs, traffic control signals, highway lighting, pavement
19 markings, or intelligent transportation systems, unless incidental to the
20 improvement of existing state trunk and connecting highways.

21 **SECTION 36mi.** 20.395 (3) (cv) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 20.395 (3) (cv) *State highway rehabilitation, local funds.* All moneys received
23 from any local unit of government or other source for the specific information sign
24 program under s. 86.195; for improvement of existing state trunk and connecting
25 highways; for improvement of bridges on state trunk or connecting highways and

1 other bridges for which improvement is a state responsibility, for necessary approach
2 work for such bridges and for replacement of such bridges with at-grade crossing
3 improvements; for the construction and rehabilitation of the national system of
4 interstate and defense highways and bridges and related appurtenances; for special
5 maintenance activities under s. 84.04 on roadside improvements; for the railroad
6 and utility alteration and relocation loan program under s. 84.065; and for the
7 disadvantaged business demonstration and training program under s. 84.076, for
8 such purposes. This paragraph does not apply to any southeast Wisconsin freeway
9 rehabilitation projects under s. 84.014.

10 **SECTION 36mj.** 20.395 (3) (cx) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 20.395 (3) (cx) *State highway rehabilitation, federal funds.* All moneys
12 received from the federal government for improvement of existing state trunk and
13 connecting highways; for improvement of bridges on state trunk or connecting
14 highways and other bridges for which improvement is a state responsibility, for
15 necessary approach work for such bridges and for replacement of such bridges with
16 at-grade crossing improvements; for the construction and rehabilitation of the
17 national system of interstate and defense highways and bridges and related
18 appurtenances; for special maintenance activities under s. 84.04 on roadside
19 improvements; and for the disadvantaged business demonstration and training
20 program under s. 84.076, for such purposes. This paragraph does not apply to any
21 southeast Wisconsin freeway rehabilitation projects under s. 84.014.

22 **SECTION 36mk.** 20.395 (6) (at) of the statutes is created to read:

23 20.395 (6) (at) *Principal repayment and interest, major highway and*
24 *rehabilitation projects, state funds.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u)

1 for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing major highway
2 and rehabilitation projects, as provided under s. 84.555.”

3 **82.** Page 16, line 5: after that line insert:

4 “SECTION 37c. 20.380 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 20.380 (1) (b) *Tourism marketing; general purpose revenue.* The amounts in the
6 schedule for tourism marketing service expenses and the execution of the functions
7 under ss. 41.11 (4) and 41.17 and the grants under 1997 Wisconsin Act 27, section
8 9148 (2f) and (2x). In each fiscal year, the department shall expend for tourism
9 marketing service expenses and the execution of the functions under ss. 41.11 (4) and
10 41.17 an amount that bears the same proportion to the amount in the schedule for
11 the fiscal year as the amount expended under par. (kg) in that fiscal year bears to the
12 amount in the schedule for par. (kg) for that fiscal year. Of the amounts under this
13 paragraph, not more than 50% shall be used to match funds allocated under s. 41.17
14 by private or public organizations for the joint effort marketing of tourism with the
15 state. The department shall expend at least \$125,000 in each fiscal year from this
16 appropriation to conduct or contract for marketing activities related to sporting
17 activities and events. Of the amounts in the schedule, \$25,000 shall be allocated in
18 each fiscal year for state sponsorship of, and advertising during, media broadcasts
19 of the Milwaukee symphony, and \$50,000 shall be provided in each fiscal year in
20 grants to the badger state games. Of the amounts in the schedule, \$50,000 shall be
21 allocated for grants to America’s Black Holocaust Museum in the city of Milwaukee.”

22 **83.** Page 16, line 5: after that line insert:

23 “SECTION 37m. 20.410 (1) (gv) of the statutes is created to read:

1 20.410 (1) (gv) *Inmate visitor transportation*. The amounts in the schedule for
2 providing transportation to persons visiting inmates in state prisons. All moneys
3 received as fees under s. 301.205 (1) (b) 1. from persons to whom such transportation
4 is provided shall be credited to this appropriation account.”.

5 **84.** Page 16, line 6: delete lines 6 to 12.

6 **85.** Page 16, line 12: after that line insert:

7 “**SECTION 38r.** 20.435 (4) (iL) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
8 16, is repealed.”.

9 **86.** Page 16, line 13: delete lines 13 and 14.

10 **87.** Page 17, line 5: after that line insert:

11 “**SECTION 41n.** 20.455 (2) (cr) of the statutes is created to read:

12 20.455 (2) (cr) *Automated fingerprint identification system grant*. The amounts
13 in the schedule for a grant to a law enforcement agency under 2001 Wisconsin Act
14 (this act), section 9131 (2x), for an automated fingerprint identification system
15 work station and for installation of a Badgernet line.

16 **SECTION 41nb.** 20.455 (2) (cr) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
17 (this act), is repealed.”.

18 **88.** Page 17, line 5: after that line insert:

19 “**SECTION 41g.** 20.455 (1) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 20.455 (1) (title) LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES.

21 **SECTION 41m.** 20.455 (1) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

22 20.455 (1) (g) *Consumer protection, information, and education*. The amounts
23 in the schedule for consumer protection and consumer information and education.

1 All moneys received under s. 100.261 (3) (d) shall be credited to this appropriation
2 account, subject to the limit under s. 100.261 (3) (e).

3 **SECTION 41p.** 20.455 (1) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

4 20.455 (1) (j) *Telephone solicitation regulation.* All moneys received from
5 telephone solicitor registration and registration renewal fees paid under the rules
6 promulgated under s. 100.52 (3) (a) for establishing and maintaining the
7 nonsolicitation directory under s. 100.52 (2).”.

8 **89.** Page 17, line 8: delete lines 8 to 13.

9 **90.** Page 17, line 23: delete lines 23 and 24.

10 **91.** Page 17, line 24: after that line insert:

11 **“SECTION 44b.** 20.505 (1) (im) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
12 16, is amended to read:

13 20.505 (1) (im) *Services to nonstate governmental units.* The amounts in the
14 schedule to provide services and to repurchase inventory items that are provided
15 primarily to purchasers other than state agencies and to transfer to the
16 appropriation account under par. (kc) the amounts received from school districts
17 under s. 16.85 (15). All moneys received from the sale of services, other than services
18 provided under par. (is), and inventory items which are provided primarily to
19 purchasers other than state agencies shall be credited to this appropriation account.

20 **SECTION 44bd.** 20.505 (1) (is) of the statutes is created to read:

21 20.505 (1) (is) *Information technology and telecommunications services;*
22 *nonstate entities.* From the sources specified in ss. 16.972 (2) (b) and (c), 16.974 (2),
23 and ~~AA 13.0000~~ ^{115.9995 (2) (d)}, to provide computer services, telecommunications services, and

1 supercomputer services to state authorities, units of the federal government, local
2 governmental units, and entities in the private sector, the amounts in the schedule.

3 **SECTION 44bL.** 20.505 (1) (it) of the statutes is created to read:

4 20.505 (1) (it) *Electronic communications services; nonstate entities.* From the
5 source specified in s. 16.974 (3), to provide electronic communications services to
6 state authorities, units of the federal government, local governmental units, and
7 entities in the private sector, the amounts in the schedule.

8 **SECTION 44bp.** 20.505 (1) (kg) of the statutes is created to read:

9 20.505 (1) (kg) *Electronic communications services; state agencies.* From the
10 source specified in s. 16.974 (3), to provide electronic communications services to
11 state agencies, the amounts in the schedule.

12 **SECTION 44c.** 20.505 (1) (kL) of the statutes is created to read:

13 20.505 (1) (kL) *Printing, mail processing, and information technology*
14 *processing services to agencies.* From the sources specified in ss. 16.972 and 16.973,
15 to provide printing, mail processing, and information technology processing services
16 to state agencies, the amounts in the schedule.

17 **SECTION 44ce.** 20.505 (1) (kr) of the statutes is created to read:

18 20.505 (1) (kr) *Information technology development and management services.*
19 From the source specified in s. 16.971 (11), to provide information technology
20 development and management services to executive branch agencies under s.
21 16.971, the amounts in the schedule.”.

22 **92.** Page 18, line 6: delete lines 6 to 22.

23 **93.** Page 19, line 3: after that line insert:

24 **“SECTION 47m.** 20.505 (4) (kt) of the statutes is created to read:

1 20.505 (4) (kt) *Wisconsin tribal–state council*. The amounts in the schedule for
2 the general program operations of the Wisconsin tribal–state council. All moneys
3 transferred from the appropriation account under sub. (8) (hm) 22. shall be credited
4 to this appropriation account. Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (a), the unencumbered
5 balance on June 30 of each year shall revert to the appropriation account under sub.
6 (8) (hm).”.

7 **94.** Page 19, line 8: after that line insert:

8 “**SECTION 50m.** 20.505 (6) (j) 12. of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
9 Act 16, is amended to read:

10 20.505 (6) (j) 12. The amount transferred to s. ~~20.530~~ sub. (1) (kq) shall be the
11 amount in the schedule under s. ~~20.530~~ sub. (1) (kq).”.

12 **95.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

13 “**SECTION 52j.** 20.510 (1) (q) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 20.510 (1) (q) *Wisconsin election campaign fund*. As a continuing
15 appropriation, from the Wisconsin election campaign fund, the moneys determined
16 under s. 11.50 to provide for payments to eligible candidates whose names are
17 certified under s. 7.08 (2) (c) and (cm) and to provide for public information as
18 authorized under s. 11.50 (2m).”.

19 ~~**96.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:~~

20 ~~“**SECTION 52j.** 20.530 (1) (g) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act~~
21 ~~16, is amended to read:~~

22 ~~20.530 (1) (g) All moneys received from the sources specified in ss. 22.05 (2) (b)~~
23 ~~and (c), 22.09 (2), and 44.73 (2) (d) 115.9995 (2) (d), to provide computer services,~~
24 ~~telecommunications services, and supercomputer services to state authorities, units~~

1 of the federal government, local governmental units, and entities in the private
2 sector, the source specified in s. 22.09 (3), to provide electronic communications
3 services to state authorities, units of the federal government, local governmental
4 units, and entities in the private sector, the source specified in s. 22.09 (3), to provide
5 electronic communications services to state agencies, the sources specified in ss.
6 22.05 and 22.07, to provide printing, mail processing, and information technology
7 processing services to state agencies, the source specified in s. 22.03 (11), to provide
8 information technology development and management services to executive branch
9 agencies under s. 22.03.

10 ~~SECTION 52k.~~ 20.530 (1) (ke) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
11 16, is amended to read:

12 20.530 (1) (ke) *Telecommunications services; state agencies; veterans services.*

13 The amounts in the schedule to provide telecommunications services to state
14 agencies and to provide veterans services under s. 22.07 (9). All moneys received
15 from the provision of telecommunications services to state agencies under ss. 22.05
16 and 22.07 or under s. 44.73 (2) (d) 115.9995 (2) (d), other than moneys received and
17 disbursed under ~~par. (kL)~~ and s. 20.225 (1) (kb), shall be credited to this
18 appropriation account."

(KL)
is
reserved

19 **97.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

20 "SECTION 52j. 20.505 (8) (hm) 22. of the statutes is created to read:

21 20.505 (8) (hm) 22. The amount transferred to sub. (4) (kt) shall be the amount
22 in the schedule under sub. (4) (kt)."

23 **98.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

1 **“SECTION 52im.** 20.505 (8) (hm) 2m. of the statutes, as created by 2001
2 Wisconsin Act 16, is repealed.”.

3 **99.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

4 **“SECTION 52gb.** 20.566 (1) (gc) of the statutes is created to read:
5 20.566 (1) (gc) *Administration of cigarette and tobacco product direct*
6 *marketing permits.* From the moneys received from permits issued and penalties
7 assessed under ss. 139.345, 139.40 (2), and 139.795, the amounts in the schedule for
8 enforcing and administering cigarette and tobacco product direct marketing permits
9 and penalties under ss. 139.345, 139.40 (2), and 139.795.”.

10 **100.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

11 **“SECTION 52h.** 20.530 (intro.) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
12 16, is repealed.

13 **SECTION 52i.** 20.530 (1) (title) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
14 16, is repealed.

15 **SECTION 52j.** 20.530 (1) (g) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
16 16, is repealed.

17 **SECTION 52k.** 20.530 (1) (ir) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
18 16, is renumbered 20.505 (1) (ir).

19 **SECTION 52L.** 20.530 (1) (ja) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
20 16, is renumbered 20.505 (1) (ja).

21 **SECTION 52Lb.** 20.530 (1) (ke) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
22 Act 16, is renumbered 20.505 (1) (ke) and amended to read:

23 20.505 (1) (ke) *Telecommunications services; state agencies; veterans services.*
24 The amounts in the schedule to provide telecommunications services to state

1 agencies and to provide veterans services under s. ~~22.07~~ 16.973 (9). All moneys
2 received from the provision of telecommunications services to state agencies under
3 ss. ~~22.05 and 22.07~~ 16.972 and 16.973 or under s. ~~44.73~~ ^{115,9995} (2) (d), other than moneys
4 received and disbursed under par. (kL) and s. 20.225 (1) (kb), shall be credited to this
5 appropriation account.

6 **SECTION 52Lc.** 20.530 (1) (kp) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
7 Act 16, is renumbered 20.505 (1) (kp) and amended to read:

8 20.505 (1) (kp) *Interagency assistance; justice information systems.* The
9 amounts in the schedule for the development and operation of automated justice
10 information systems under s. ~~22.03~~ 16.971 (9). All moneys transferred from the
11 appropriation accounts under ~~s. 20.505 sub.~~ (6) (kt) and (m) shall be credited to this
12 appropriation account.

13 **SECTION 52Ld.** 20.530 (1) (kq) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
14 Act 16, is renumbered 20.505 (1) (kq) and amended to read:

15 20.505 (1) (kq) *Justice information systems development, operation and*
16 *maintenance.* The amounts in the schedule for the purpose of developing, operating
17 and maintaining automated justice information systems under s. ~~22.03~~ 16.971 (9).
18 All moneys transferred from the appropriation account under ~~s. 20.505 sub.~~ (6) (j) 12.
19 shall be credited to this appropriation account.

20 **SECTION 52Ldb.** 20.530 (1) (m) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
21 Act 16, is repealed.”.

22 **101.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

23 “**SECTION 52im.** 20.515 (2) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.515 (2) (g) *Private employer health care coverage plan.* All moneys received
2 under subch. X of ch. 40 from employers who elect to participate in the private
3 employer health care coverage program under subch. X of ch. 40 and from any other
4 person under s. 40.98 (2) (h), for the costs of designing, marketing, and contracting
5 for or providing administrative services for the program and for lapsing to the
6 general fund the amounts required under s. 40.98 (6m).”.

7 **102.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

8 “**SECTION 52j.** 20.510 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

9 20.510 (1) (b) *Election-related cost reimbursement.* A sum sufficient to
10 reimburse municipalities for claims allowed under s. 5.68 (7).”.

11 **103.** Page 19, line 20: after that line insert:

12 “**SECTION 52h.** 20.515 (1) (vm) of the statutes is created to read:

13 20.515 (1) (vm) *Early retirement benefits under 2001 Wisconsin Act (this act).*
14 Biennially, from the public employee trust fund, the amounts in the schedule for
15 administering the provision of early retirement benefits under 2001 Wisconsin Act
16 (this act), section 9116 (1q).”.

17 **104.** Page 20, line 3: delete the material beginning with that line and ending
18 with page 21, line 3.

19 **105.** Page 21, line 3: after that line insert:

20 “**SECTION 57m.** 20.855 (4) (ba) of the statutes is created to read:

21 20.855 (4) (ba) *Wisconsin election campaign fund supplement.* A sum sufficient
22 equal to the amounts required to make full payment of grants which candidates
23 qualify to receive from the Wisconsin election campaign fund, to be transferred from

1 the general fund to the Wisconsin election campaign fund no later than the time
2 required to make payments of grants under s. 11.50 (5).”.

3 **106.** Page 21, line 3: after that line insert:

4 “SECTION 56m. 20.835 (1) (fm) of the statutes is created to read:

5 20.835 (1) (fm) *Consolidation and annexation aid account.* The amounts in the
6 schedule to make the payments under s. 79.097.”.

7 **107.** Page 21, line 3: after that line insert:

8 “SECTION 57b. 20.855 (1) (ch) of the statutes is created to read:

9 20.855 (1) (ch) *Payment to reimburse loan to general fund from the office of the*
10 *commissioner of insurance.* A sum sufficient to repay the loan to the general fund
11 under s. 601.34, but not to exceed the sum of the following:

12 1. The amounts lapsed to the general fund from the appropriation account
13 under s. 20.515 (2) (a) at the end of the 2001–03 fiscal biennium.

14 2. The amounts lapsed to the general fund from the appropriation account
15 under s. 20.515 (2) (g), as determined under s. 40.98 (6m).

16 3. Any amount that is needed to repay all principle and interest costs on the
17 loan to the general fund under s. 601.34 and that exceeds the amounts identified in
18 subs. 1. and 2.”.

19 **108.** Page 21, line 9: delete lines 9 to 13.

20 **109.** Page 21, line 25: after that line insert:

21 **SECTION 64h.** 20.866 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act 5
22 *and (this act)*
16, is amended to read:

23 20.866 (1) (u) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient from moneys
24 appropriated under sub. (2) (zp) and ss. 20.115 (2) (d) ~~and (7) (b) and (f)~~, 20.190 (1)

1 (c), (d), (i), and (j), 20.225 (1) ^{score} (c) and (i), 20.245 (1) (e) and (j), 20.250 (1) (c) and (e),
2 20.255 (1) (d), ~~20.275 (1)~~ ^{and (4)} (er), (es), (h), and (hb), 20.285 (1) (d), (db), (fh), (ih), (kd), and
3 (km) and (5) (i), 20.320 (1) (c) and (t) and (2) (c), 20.370 (7) (aa), (ac), (ag), (aq), (ar),
4 (at), (au), (ba), (bb), (bq), (ca), (cb), (cc), (cd), (ce), (cf), (df), (ea), (eq), and (er), 20.395
5 (6) (af), (aq), ~~and (ar)~~ ^{and (af), ← plain}, 20.410 (1) (e), (ec), and (ko) and (3) (e), 20.435 (2) (ee) and (6)
6 (e), 20.465 (1) (d), 20.485 (1) (f) and (go), (3) (t) and (4) (qm), 20.505 (5) (c), (g) and (kc),
7 20.855 (8) (a) and 20.867 (1) (a) and (b) and (3) (a), (b), (bm), (bp), (br), (bt), (g), (h),
8 (i), and (q) for the payment of principal and interest on public debt contracted under
9 subchs. I and IV of ch. 18.”

10 **110.** Page 21, line 25: after that line insert:

11 “**SECTION 64h.** 20.866 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
12 16, is amended to read:

13 20.866 (1) (u) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient from moneys
14 appropriated under sub. (2) (zp) and ss. 20.115 (2) (d) and (7) (b) and (f), 20.190 (1)
15 (c), (d), (i), and (j), 20.225 (1) (c) and (i), 20.245 (1) (e) and (j), 20.250 (1) (c) and (e),
16 20.255 (1) (d), 20.275 (1) (er), (es), (h), and (hb), 20.285 (1) (d), (db), (fh), (ih), (kd), and
17 (km) and (5) (i), 20.320 (1) (c) and (t) and (2) (c), 20.370 (7) (aa), (ac), (ag), (aq), (ar),
18 (at), (au), (ba), (bq), (ca), (cb), (cc), (cd), (ce), (cf), (ea), (eq), and (er), 20.395 (6) (af), (aq),
19 ~~and (ar)~~, and (at), 20.410 (1) (e), (ec), and (ko) and (3) (e), 20.435 (2) (ee) and (6) (e),
20 20.465 (1) (d), 20.485 (1) (f) and (go), (3) (t) and (4) (qm), 20.505 (5) (c), (g) and (kc),
21 20.855 (8) (a) and 20.867 (1) (a) and (b) and (3) (a), (b), (bm), (bp), (br), (bt), (g), (h),
22 (i), and (q) for the payment of principal and interest on public debt contracted under
23 subchs. I and IV of ch. 18.”

24 **111.** Page 21, line 25: after that line insert:

1 **"SECTION 64g.** 20.865 (4) (k) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin Act
2 16, is amended to read:

3 20.865 (4) (k) *Public assistance programs supplementation.* All moneys
4 transferred under 2001 Wisconsin Act 16, section 9258 (2w), to supplement
5 appropriations, as provided in s. 13.101, for cash benefit payments to Wisconsin
6 works participants under s. 49.148 and all moneys transferred under 2001 Wisconsin
7 Act ... (this act), section 9258 (14d), to supplement appropriations, as provided in s.
8 13.101, for any purpose that is allowable under the federal temporary assistance for
9 needy families program under 42 USC 601 to 619."

10 **112.** Page 22, line 1: before that line insert:

11 ~~**"SECTION 64L.** 20.866 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
12 16, is amended to read:~~

13 ~~20.866 (1) (u) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient from moneys
14 appropriated under sub. (2) (zp) and ss. 20.115 (2) (d) and (7) (b) and (f), 20.190 (1)
15 (c), (d), (i), and (j), 20.225 (1) (c) and (i), 20.245 (1) (e) and (j), 20.250 (1) (c) and (e),
16 20.255 (1) (d), ~~20.275 (1)~~ 20.255 (4) (er), (es), (h), and (hb), 20.285 (1) (d), (db), (fh),
17 (ih), (kd), and (km) and (5) (i), 20.320 (1) (c) and (t) and (2) (c), 20.370 (7) (aa), (ac),
18 (ag), (aq), (ar), (at), (au), (ba), (bq), (ca), (cb), (cc), (cd), (ce), (cf), (ea), (eq), and (er),
19 20.395 (6) (af), (aq), and (ar), 20.410 (1) (e), (ec), and (ko) and (3) (e), 20.435 (2) (ee)
20 and (6) (e), 20.465 (1) (d), 20.485 (1) (f) and (go), (3) (t) and (4) (qm), 20.505 (5) (c), (g)
21 and (kc), 20.855 (8) (a) and 20.867 (1) (a) and (b) and (3) (a), (b), (bm), (bp), (br), (bt),
22 (g), (h), (i), and (q) for the payment of principal and interest on public debt contracted
23 under subchs. I and IV of ch. 18."~~

24 **113.** Page 22, line 9: after that line insert:

1 **“SECTION 64vg.** 20.866 (2) (we) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
2 Act 16, is amended to read:

3 20.866 (2) (we) ~~*Agriculture*~~ *Natural resources; soil and water.* From the capital
4 improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of ~~agriculture, trade and~~
5 ~~consumer protection~~ natural resources to provide for soil and water resource
6 management under s. 92.14. The state may contract public debt in an amount not
7 to exceed \$13,575,000 for this purpose.

8 **SECTION 64vm.** 20.866 (2) (wf) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.866 (2) (wf) ~~*Agriculture*~~ *Natural resources; conservation reserve*
10 *enhancement.* From the capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the
11 department of ~~agriculture, trade and consumer protection~~ natural resources to fund
12 the conservation reserve enhancement program under s. ~~93.70~~ 281.52. The state
13 may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$40,000,000 for this purpose.”.

14 **114.** Page 22, line 9: after that line insert:

15 **“SECTION 64tg.** 20.866 (2) (ur) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.866 (2) (ur) *Transportation; accelerated highway improvements.* From the
17 capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge,
18 or improve state highway facilities as provided by ss. 84.06 and 84.09. The state may
19 contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$185,000,000 for this purpose. This
20 paragraph does not apply to any southeast Wisconsin freeway rehabilitation projects
21 under s. 84.014.

22 **SECTION 64th.** 20.866 (2) (uu) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 20.866 (2) (uu) *Transportation; highway projects.* From the capital
24 improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of transportation to acquire,

1 construct, reconstruct, improve, or develop highway projects under ss. 84.06 and
2 84.09. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$41,000,000 for
3 this purpose. This paragraph does not apply to any southeast Wisconsin freeway
4 rehabilitation projects under s. 84.014.

5 **SECTION 64ti.** 20.866 (2) (uum) of the statutes is created to read:

6 20.866 (2) (uum) *Transportation; major highway and rehabilitation projects.*

7 From the capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of
8 transportation to fund major highway and rehabilitation projects, as provided under
9 s. 84.555. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed
10 \$200,000,000 for this purpose.”.

11 **115.** Page 23, line 25: after that line insert:

12 “**SECTION 68m.** 20.866 (2) (zc) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 20.866 (2) (zc) ~~*Technology for educational achievement in Wisconsin board*~~
14 ~~*Department of public instruction; school district educational technology*~~
15 ~~*infrastructure financial assistance.*~~ From the capital improvement fund, a sum
16 sufficient for the ~~technology for educational achievement in Wisconsin board~~
17 ~~department of public instruction~~ to provide educational technology infrastructure
18 financial assistance to school districts under s. 44.72(4) 115.999 (4). The state may
19 contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$100,000,000 for this purpose.

20 **SECTION 68n.** 20.866 (2) (zcm) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin
21 Act 16, is amended to read:

22 20.866 (2) (zcm) ~~*Technology for educational achievement in Wisconsin board*~~
23 ~~*Department of public instruction; public library educational technology*~~
24 ~~*infrastructure financial assistance.*~~ From the capital improvement fund, a sum

1 sufficient for the ~~technology for educational achievement in Wisconsin board~~
2 department of public instruction to provide educational technology infrastructure
3 financial assistance to public library boards under s. ~~44.72 (4)~~ 115.999 (4). The state
4 may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$3,000,000 for this purpose.”.

5 **116.** Page 23, line 25: after that line insert:

6 “SECTION 68d. 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. b. of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
7 Act 16, is amended to read:

8 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. b. July 1, 2003, to June 30, 2005, ~~\$63,500,000~~ \$95,500,000.

9 SECTION 68e. 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. c. of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
10 Act 16, is amended to read:

11 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. c. July 1, 2005, to June 30, 2007, ~~\$95,500,000~~ \$127,500,000.

12 SECTION 68f. 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. d. of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
13 Act 16, is amended to read:

14 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. d. July 1, 2007, ~~to June 30, 2009, \$127,500,000~~ or thereafter,
15 \$158,500,000.

16 SECTION 68g. 20.866 (2) (z) 3m. e. of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
17 Act 16, is repealed.”.

18 **117.** Page 23, line 25: after that line insert:

19 “SECTION 68c. 20.922 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 20.922 (1) Unless otherwise provided by law, each state agency may appoint
21 such ~~deputies,~~ assistants, experts, clerks, stenographers, or other employees as are
22 necessary for the execution of its functions, and to designate the titles, prescribe the
23 duties, and fix the compensation of such subordinates, but these powers shall be
24 exercised subject to the state civil service law, unless the position filled has been

1 expressly exempted from the operation of ch. 230 and subject, also, to the approval
2 of such other officer or body as is prescribed by law. If a state agency contains a board
3 or commission which is authorized to appoint an executive officer by whatever name
4 called, the appointing power resides in the executive officer and the board or
5 commission has no further appointing power except as it is specifically given such
6 power.

7 **SECTION 68m.** 20.923 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.923 (4) STATE AGENCY POSITIONS. (intro.) State agency heads, the
9 administrator of the division of merit recruitment and selection in the department
10 of employment relations and commission chairpersons and members shall be
11 identified and limited in number in accordance with the standardized nomenclature
12 contained in this subsection, and shall be assigned to the executive salary groups
13 listed in pars. (a) to (i). ~~Except for positions specified in par. (c) 3m. and sub. (12),~~
14 ~~all unclassified division administrator positions enumerated under s. 230.08 (2) (e)~~
15 ~~shall be assigned, when approved by the joint committee on employment relations,~~
16 ~~by the secretary of employment relations to one of 10 executive salary groups.~~ The
17 joint committee on employment relations, by majority vote of the full committee, may
18 amend recommendations for initial position assignments and changes in
19 assignments to the executive salary groups submitted by the secretary of
20 employment relations. All division administrator assignments and amendments to
21 assignments of administrator positions approved by the committee shall become
22 part of the compensation plan. ~~Whenever a new unclassified division administrator~~
23 ~~position is created, the appointing authority may set the salary for the position until~~
24 ~~the joint committee on employment relations approves assignment of the position to~~
25 ~~an executive salary group. If the committee approves assignment of the position to~~

1 ~~an executive salary group having a salary range minimum or maximum inconsistent~~
2 ~~with the salary paid to the incumbent at the time of such approval, the incumbent's~~
3 ~~salary shall be adjusted by the appointing authority to conform with the committee's~~
4 ~~action, effective on the date of that action. Positions are assigned as follows:".~~

5 **118.** Page 24, line 3: after that line insert:

6 “SECTION 69m. 20.923 (4) (e) 1b. of the statutes is repealed.”.

7 **119.** Page 24, line 3: after that line insert:

8 “SECTION 69j. 20.923 (6) (ab) of the statutes is created to read:

9 20.923 (6) (ab) Administration, department of: executive director of the
10 Wisconsin tribal–state council.”.

11 **120.** Page 24, line 4: after that line insert:

12 “SECTION 69m. 20.923 (4) (h) 2. of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
13 Act 16, is repealed.”.

14 **121.** Page 24, line 4: after that line insert:

15 “SECTION 69t. 20.923 (6) (as) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.923 (6) (as) Each elective executive officer other than the attorney general,
17 the secretary of state, the state treasurer, and the superintendent of public
18 instruction: ~~a deputy or an~~ assistant.”.

19 **122.** Page 24, line 6: after that line insert:

20 “SECTION 71b. 20.923 (7) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
21 Act 29, is renumbered 20.923 (7) and amended to read:

22 20.923 (7) DIRECTOR OF THE WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM SENIOR
23 ~~EXECUTIVE POSITIONS.~~ The salary range for the director ~~and the executive assistant~~
24 of the Wisconsin Technical College System shall be contained in the

1 recommendations of the secretary of employment relations under s. 230.12 (3) (e).
2 The board of the Wisconsin Technical College System shall set the salaries for these
3 positions this position within the range to which the ~~positions are~~ position is
4 assigned to recognize merit, to permit orderly salary progression, and to recognize
5 competitive factors. The salary of any incumbent in the ~~positions identified in pars.~~
6 ~~(a) and (b)~~ position may not exceed the maximum of the salary range for the group
7 to which the position is assigned. ~~The positions are assigned as follows:~~

8 **SECTION 71bm.** 20.923 (7) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

9 **SECTION 71bp.** 20.923 (7) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

10 **SECTION 71d.** 20.923 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 20.923 (8) DEPUTIES. Salaries for deputies appointed pursuant to ~~ss. s.~~ s. 13.94
12 (3) (b), ~~15.04 (2) and 551.51 (1)~~ shall be set by the appointing authority. The salary
13 shall not exceed the maximum of the salary range one range below the salary range
14 of the executive salary group to which the department or agency head is assigned.
15 ~~The positions of assistant secretary of state, assistant state treasurer and associate~~
16 ~~director of the historical society shall be treated as unclassified deputies for pay~~
17 ~~purposes under this subsection.~~

18 **SECTION 71dm.** 20.923 (9) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
19 29, is repealed.

20 **SECTION 71e.** 20.923 (14) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 20.923 (14) (a) Any adjustment of salary for any incumbent in a position
22 specified in subs. (4), (8), ~~(9)~~ and (12) is governed by the provisions of the
23 compensation plan concerning executive salary groups as adopted by the joint
24 committee on employment relations under s. 230.12 (3) (b).

1 **SECTION 71f.** 20.923 (15) (b) of the statutes, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin Act
2 29, is amended to read:

3 20.923 (15) (b) Except for the positions identified in subs. (4g), (5), and (7) (b),
4 the pay of any incumbent whose salary is subject to a limitation under this section
5 may not equal or exceed that amount paid the governor.”.

6 **123.** Page 24, line 18: after that line insert:

7 **“SECTION 71pc.** 21.18 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 21.18 (1) The military staff of the governor shall consist of the adjutant general,
9 with a minimum rank of brigadier general; ~~a deputy adjutant general for army, who~~
10 ~~may be a general officer;~~ an assistant adjutant general, army, for readiness and
11 training, who may be a general officer; a deputy assistant adjutant general, army,
12 for readiness and training; ~~a deputy adjutant general for air, who may be a general~~
13 ~~officer;~~ a chief surgeon for army, who may be a general officer; a chief surgeon for air,
14 who may be a general officer; a staff judge advocate for army, who may be a general
15 officer; a staff judge advocate for air, who may be a general officer; a state chaplain,
16 who may be a general officer; and such other officers as the governor deems
17 necessary. Vacancies in positions other than those of the adjutant general shall be
18 filled through appointment by the adjutant general.

19 **SECTION 71ph.** 21.18 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 21.18 (3) All staff officers appointed under sub. (1), except the adjutant general
21 whose tenure is governed by ss. 15.31 and 17.07 (5), shall hold their positions unless
22 terminated earlier by resignation, disability or for cause and unless federal
23 recognition of the officer’s commission under 32 USC 323 is refused or withdrawn.
24 The governor shall remove an officer whose federal recognition is refused or



1 withdrawn, effective on the date of the loss of federal recognition. ~~The terms of the~~
2 ~~deputy adjutants general for army and air shall be 5 years beginning on the first day~~
3 ~~of the 7th month of the term of the adjutant general. The deputy adjutants general~~
4 ~~may be reappointed to successive terms.~~ Vacancies on the military staff of the
5 governor shall be filled by appointment from officers actively serving in the
6 Wisconsin national guard. Interim vacancies shall be filled by appointment by the
7 adjutant general for the residue of the unexpired term.

8 **SECTION 71pn.** 21.19 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 21.19 (5) In the absence or incapacity of the adjutant general the senior
10 ranking deputy assistant adjutant general for army or air shall have all the powers
11 and duties of the adjutant general.

12 **SECTION 71r.** 21.20 of the statutes is amended to read:

13 **21.20 Civil service status.** All full-time state-paid employees of the
14 department of military affairs shall be under the classified service, except the
15 adjutant general, ~~the executive assistant to the adjutant general, the deputy~~
16 ~~adjutants general for army and air and the administrator of the division of~~
17 ~~emergency management."~~

18 **124.** Page 25, line 15: after that line insert:



19 "SECTION 72fb. Chapter 22 (title) of the statutes, as created by 2001 Wisconsin
20 Act 16, is repealed.

21 **SECTION 72fbm.** 22.01 (intro.) of the statutes is repealed.

22 **SECTION 72fc.** 22.01 (1), (2), (2m), (3) and (4) of the statutes, as affected by 2001
23 Wisconsin Act 16, are renumbered 16.97 (1m), (2), (2m), (3) and (4).